
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

1633 GARDEN HIGHWAY 
SACRAMENTO, CA 95833 

FRIDAY, APRIL 12, 2019 
8:00 A.M. 

AGENDA 

1. PRELIMINARY

1.1. Call Meeting to Order
1.2. Approval of Agenda
1.3. Pledge of Allegiance
1.4. Conflict of Interest (Any Agenda items that might be a conflict of interest to any Trustee should

be identified at this time by the Trustee involved) 

2. PRESENTATIONS

No presentations scheduled for this meeting. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (NON-AGENDA ITEMS)

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do so under the 
Public Comments section. Speaker times are limited to three (3) minutes per person on any matter 
within RD 1000’s jurisdiction, not on the Agenda. 

Public comments on agenda or non-agenda items during the Board of Trustees meeting are for the 
purpose of informing the Board to assist Trustees in making decisions. Please address your comments 
to the President of the Board.  The Board President will request responses from staff, if appropriate. 
Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the Board from taking any immediate 
action on an item which does not appear on the agenda unless the item meets stringent statutory 
requirements (see California Government Code Section 54954.2 (a)). 

Public comments during Board meetings are not for question and answers.  Should you have questions, 
please do not ask them as part of your public comments to the Board.  Answers will not be provided 
during Board meetings.  Please present your questions to any member of RD 1000 staff via e-mail, 
telephone, letter, or in-person at a time other than during a Board meeting. 

Board Packet 
Page 1 of 101



4. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

4.1. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: Update on activities since the March 2019 Board of Trustees
Meeting. 

4.2. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT:  Update on activities since the March 2019 Board of Trustees 
Meeting. 

4.3. DISTRICT COUNSEL’S REPORT: Update on activities since the March 2019 Board of Trustees 
Meeting. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

The Board considers all Consent Calendar items to be routine and will adopt them in one motion.  There 
will be no discussion on these items before the Board votes on the motion, unless Trustees, staff or the
public request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar.

5.1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Approval of Minutes from March 8, 2019 Regular Board Meeting. 

5.2. TREASURER’S REPORT: Approve Treasurer’s Report for March 2019. 

5.3. EXPENDITURE REPORT: Review and Accept Report for March 2019. 

5.4. BUDGET TO ACTUAL REPORT: Review and Accept Report for March 2019. 

5.5. RATIFICATION OF UTILITY AGREEMENT: Review and Consider Ratification of Utility Agreement 
with State of California Department of Transportation – Metro Air Parkway. 

5.6. AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT EASEMENT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-
4-1 Authorizing General Manager to Accept Grant of Easement Deed from Granite Bay – Natomas
Meadows, LP.

5.7. AUTHORIZATION TO GRANT EASEMENT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-
4-2 Authorizing General Manager to Grant Easement Deed to Pacific Gas & Electric Company.

5.8. AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE FUNDING AGREEMENT: Review and Consider Adoption of 
Resolution No. 2019-4-3 Authorizing General Manager to Execute Funding Agreement with State 
of California Department of Water Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program. 

6. SCHEDULED ITEMS

6.1. FISCAL YEAR 2018/19 BUDGET ADJUSTMENT: Review and Consider Approval of Fiscal Year
2018/2019 Budget Adjustment and Amend District’s Official Pay Rate Schedule. 

Board Packet 
Page 2 of 101



6.2. AUTHORIZATION FOR EXCEPTION:  Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-4 
Authorizing 180 Day-Wait Period Exception for Appointment of Retired Annuitant- Paul 
Devereux. 

6.3. RECOGNITION OF SERVICE: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-5 
Recognizing District Service – Paul Devereux. 

7. BOARD OF TRUSTEE’S COMMENTS

7.1. BOARD ACTIVITY UPDATES:

7.1.1.   RD 1000 Committee Meetings Since Last Board Meeting 
• Executive Committee (Smith & Barandas) April 3, 2019
• Personnel Committee (Harris, Burns, Christophel) April 4, 2019
• Urbanization Committee (Burns, Gilbert, & Avdis) April 9, 2019
• Operations Committee (Barandas, Christophel, & Smith) April 9, 2019

7.1.2.   RD 1000 Committees No Meetings Since Last Board Meeting 
• Finance Committee (Gilbert, Harris, & Smith)
• Legal Committee (Avdis, Barandas, & Harris)
• Ad-Hoc Committee – Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) (Christophel, Avdis, Barandas,

& Burns)

8. CLOSED SESSION

8.1. No Closed Session Items

9. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

9.1. No Closed Session Items

10. ADJOURN

Board Packet 
Page 3 of 101



DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.1 

TITLE: General Manager’s Report – March 2019  

SUBJECT: Update on activities since the March 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to report the noteworthy activities and events of the District. 
Noteworthy activities from March included receipt of funding agreement California Department 
of Water Resources (DWR) under the Flood Maintenance Assistance Program (FMAP), 
implementation of SCADA and ongoing coordination of the Natomas Levee Improvement Project 
with United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and the Sacramento Area Flood Control 
Agency (SAFCA).  In summary, the District had a productive and successful month.  Our key 
activities and achievements are presented below: 

BACKGROUND: 

1. Administration Services
a. Finance

i. Budget Fiscal Year 2019-2020

1. Budget Timeline: The intent of the schedule provided below is to outline
the steps and milestones necessary to have a final budget ready for the
Trustees to consider for adoption at the June 2019 Board Meeting.

a. Week of April 1st

i. Personnel Committee – Met (April 4) and reviewed Staff’s
recommendation on Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) and Salary
Adjustments per the Board’s Compensation Philosophy.

b. Week of April 8th

i. Operations Committee – Met (April 9) and reviewed Budget
assumptions for Operations & Maintenance (O&M) and Capital
Improvement Program (CIP).

c. Week of April 15th

i. Finance Committee – Meet and review Draft Budget and Projected
Cash Flow Analysis.

d. May 10, 2019 – RD 1000 Board Meeting
i. Present Draft Budget to Trustees for review and comment.  Staff to

receive comments from the Trustees and adjust as directed.
e. June 14, 2019 – RD 1000 Board Meeting

i. Present Final Budget to Trustees for consideration of adoption.

Board Packet 
Page 4 of 101



b. Human Resources

i. Completed nearly all personnel performance evaluations with a few
remaining in process.

2. District Operations
a. Flood Operations:

i. The District suspended continuous levee monitoring and inspections on
Tuesday (3/19) at 6:00 am, as prescribed in the District’s Emergency Action
Plan (EAP).  The EAP was activated as a result of the rise in river elevation
above 32.0’ at the Verona Stream Gauge on the Sacramento River.  As of
10:00 pm, Monday (3/18), the Sacramento River at Verona was below the
32.0’ threshold.

ii. District crews discovered two (2) boils at Pumping Plant No. 2, around 9:00
a.m. Sunday (3/10).  The boils are similar to what was observed and
repaired in 2017 and it does not appear to be an emergency situation.  As
such, the District has been watching the boils closely over the last two (2)
weeks and the situation is on-going, yet stable.  The District has reached
out to, Ray Costa, to visit the site and make a recommendation for repairs
later this spring.

iii. The District again implemented continuous levee monitoring and
inspections on Friday (4/5) at 6:00 am, as prescribed in the District’s
Emergency Action Plan (EAP).  The EAP was activated as a result of
precipitation, reservoir releases and rise in river elevation above 32.0’ at
the Verona Stream Gauge on the Sacramento River. As of the date of this
report, the District was still in monitoring operations.

3. Development Projects
a. Greenbriar

i. The District worked with Mark Rodgers, Greenbriar Development
Engineer, on modifications to conditions of approval for Greenbriar Phase
II Project.  An SRC meeting was held on March 27, 2019 for the project to
review all conditions of approval prior to the Planning Commission
meeting held last week.

Board Packet 
Page 5 of 101



b. Metro Air Park

i. The District met with Mead & Hunt and Cal Trans Consulting Engineer, Jake
Weir (Mark Thomas, Inc.) regarding the proposed Metro Air Parkway
Improvements.  The proposed project, a new interchange at Metro Air
Park and Interstate 5, has been in planning for many years, and will require
relocation of an RD 1000 drainage channel and acceptance of a County
waterline encroachment in the RD 1000 channel embankment.  Cal Trans
has requested RD 1000 to sign a Utility Agreement prior to our April Board
meeting, so they may finish their construction drawings and go out to bid
by April 8, 2019.  The agreement allows RD 1000 to be reimbursed for
design review and construction inspection expenditures (approx. $15,000).
Mead & Hunt reviewed the proposed plans and has been working on RD
1000’s behalf to minimize impacts.  Mead & Hunt recommended RD 1000
accept the improvements/relocation as proposed. District Counsel
reviewed the proposed Utility Agreement and made recommendations for
clarification.  Cal Trans responded satisfactorily to those requests.  With
concurrence from Board President Smith, GM King signed the Utility
Agreement on Friday (3/29).  Agenda Item 5.5 of this Board Packet seeks
ratification of the agreement.

4. Capital Improvement Projects
a. SCADA:

i. The SCADA radio survey/test was performed this month.  Results of the
radio survey/test were successful and there is substantial coverage for the
entire District using the licensed frequencies.

ii. Programming adjustments were made this month at the pumping plants
as a minor issue in the programming was discovered during flood
operations.  Apparently, there was an error in water level set points which
triggered pump startups when the system was set to auto, even if the
water level was below our desired set point.  The issue has been corrected
and the District does not anticipate future problems with the water level
set point programming.

5. Natomas Levee Improvement Projects

a. Reach A

i. The District, SAFCA and USACE are continuing discussions on the Value
Engineering report and determining next steps in design. The District
participated in two (2) meetings this past month regarding the Value
Engineering Report.  At this point USACE still anticipates 65% design in July
2019, followed by 95% design in January 2020.

Board Packet 
Page 6 of 101



b. Reach B 

i. Contract award scheduled September 2019; construction in 2020-2021.   
90% plans submitted December 2018.  Work includes the relocation of the 
NCMWC Riverside Canal and modifications to Plant 3 discharge pipes and 
removal of gravity drain. SAFCA is currently negotiating with several 
residents to purchase properties and have initiated condemnation actions 
where necessary.  District has requested the design include a physical 
barrier between Garden Highway and top of proposed adjacent levee. 

ii. I-5 Window; Construction award scheduled January 2020 with 
construction in spring 2020.  65% plans prepared for submission to 
Caltrans for review; design proposed landside floodwall at the top of levee 
to avoid fill on freeway piers.   

c. Reach C 

i.  No reportable items. 

d. Reach D 

i. Contract construction commenced in August 2018 with initial excavation 
for the proposed relocated Vestal Drain.  Work has stopped for the winter. 
Work on Plant 4 as well as removal of NCMWC Bennet and Northern intake 
pipes will be done in 2019 along with completion of the Vestal Drain 
relocation work.  USACE received the Engineer’s Estimate ($4.0+ M) for the 
Plant 4 construction on Tuesday (2/19). 

e. Reach E 

i. Construction award anticipated 2020. Geotechnical work and 
recommended design to be completed by March 2019.  Initial work on 
utility identification and surveys have commenced (design being done by 
USACE Walla Walla District).  Coordinating levee work with proposed 
replacement of Howsley Road bridge by Sutter County. 

f. Reach F 

i. Anticipated Award 2022. 

g. Reach G 

i.  Anticipated Award 2022. 

h. Reach I  

i. Contract 1 awarded 2018 to Inquip Associates Inc ($23.8 M).  Work 
commenced December 2018 with relocation of bike trail under I-5; 
anticipate relocation of City water line in spring 2019.  Negotiations 
between City and USACE for proposed road closures under I-5 and at 
Gateway Oaks intersection.  Slurry wall construction to start April 2019.  
Garden Highway hard closure for work between Truxel and Northgate.     

Board Packet 
Page 7 of 101



ii. Contract 2 includes landside access road, slope flattening and tree 
removals.  Contract award scheduled 2021. 

i. Reach H 

i. Contract awarded January 2019 to Inquip Associates Inc ($41.7 M).  
Construction 2019-2020.  Preconstruction meeting scheduled February 21, 
construction anticipated to start April 2019.  Proposed work includes levee 
de-grade for construction of slurry cutoff wall; slope flattening and 
landside access and patrol road.   

ii. State DWR still working on real estate acquisitions for construction of 
landside access road.   

iii. RD 1000 met with several property owners on Thursday (3/14) regarding 
unauthorized encroachments (primarily fences) that need to be relocated 
for access road.  The meetings went well, and the District will coordinate 
with USACE to modify plans slightly to allow some existing encroachments 
to remain.  The District will subsequently document the encroachments, 
and issue encroachment permits to the landowners, to ensure future 
removal or replacement of said encroachments will be the responsibility 
of the landowners.  

6. Outreach 
a. Newsletter   

 
i. The District is currently compiling a list of potential topics for the Spring e-

newsletter. 
  

b. Creek Week 
 

i. Scheduled for April 13, 2019.  District will be participating in the annual 
event at the same level of effort as in years past.  
 

c. Urban Outreach Committee 
 

i. Met with Committee on April 9, 2019. Minutes are available in Agenda 
Item 7.1.1 of this Board Packet.  

 
7. Miscellaneous 

a. Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency (SAFCA) 
  

i. During construction of the SAFCA North Area Streams Project that was 
constructed on Arcade Creek and the NEMDC east levee between Arcade 
Creek and West El Camino, the contractor uncovered cultural material that 
are required to be reburied.  After looking at a number of sites the tribe is 
requesting reburial in the NEMDC on the east side of the channel, just 

Board Packet 
Page 8 of 101



upstream of West El Camino.  After review with District Counsel, the 
District will agree to SAFCA’s request and allow the reburial provided all 
future risk/liability remain with SAFCA. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

None  
 
STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/08/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 
 
 

Board Packet 
Page 9 of 101



 
 
 

DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.2 
 

 
TITLE:  Superintendent’s Report 
 
SUBJECT: Update on activities since the March 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
This Staff Report is intended to inform the Board and serve as official record of the activities the 
District’s field staff engaged in for the month of March 2019. As well as provide information 
regarding District facility use and local weather impacts on District facilities and river levels.  
There are no staff recommendations, information provided is strictly informational. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Superintendent report was created to provide monthly updates to the Board of Trustees on 
field activities within the District boundaries, as well as provide a historical record. This allows for 
the District and the public the opportunity to refer back to data trends over time regarding the 
weather impact on District facilities, crew activities and local river and canal conditions as well as 
general District activities from month to month. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
None 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Superintendent’s Report Data Sheet  
 
STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/3/2019 
Donald Caldwell, Superintendent 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/5/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 10 of 101



River Levels: 
Bannon     H: 8.80’ 

L: 6.97’ 

River H: 27.72’ 
L: 20.07’ 

Rain Fall Totals: 
Rain totals for the 
month of March 
were 4.93”  

Rain totals since 
July 1st were 
27.10”  

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

River Levels in Feet

Bannon River High Bannon River Low River River High River River Low

4.
93

27
.1

5.
88

13
.2

6

M A R C H S I N C E  J U L Y

RAIN FALL LEVELS IN INCHES
Current Year 18/19 Last Year 17/18

AGENDA ITEM 4.2
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 11 of 101



Safety topics for the month of March: Mower inspection and safe operation of equipment.  
 
The chart below represents the various activities the field crew spent their time working on during the 
month of March 2019.  
 

 
RD 1000 Field Crew 

 
*Field Hours Worked 

 
Activity 

 0 Plant Maintenance 
0 Grounds 

286 Pump Rounds 
8 Fence Repair 

16 Mowing 
1900.98 Levee Patrol 

0 Tree Trimming/Removal 
32 Garbage 
0 Upper GGS 

64 Equipment Repairs 
   

*Hours worked do not include: sick, vacation, holiday or Superintendent’s time 

Pumping 
The district did a lot of pumping due to multiple rain events in March. 
 

 
Pumping Plant 

 
Pump 

 
Hours and A/F 

Plant 1-B Pump # 1 103.4 hours and 1013.32 A/F 
 Pump # 2 6.4 hours and 62.72 A/F 
 Pump # 4 208.2 hours and 2040.36 A/F 
 Pump # 5 108.3 hours and 1061.34 A/F 
 Pump # 6 230.9 hours and 2262.82 A/F 

Plant 2 Pump # 1 60.5 hours and 399.3 A/F 
 Pump # 2 139.1 hours and 403.39 A/F 

Plant 3 Pump # 1 230.4 hours and 1000.48 A/F 
 Pump # 2 288.9 hours and 1328.94 A/F 
 Pump # 3 80.9 hours and 540.69 A/F 
 Pump # 4 328.6 hours and 1347.26 A/F 

Plant 4 Pump # 1 36.3 hours and 206.91 A/F 
 Pump # 2 123.2 hours and 1207.36 A/F 

Plant 5 Pump # 2 27.2 hours and 51.68 A/F 
 Pump # 3 41.2 hours and 78.28 A/F 

Plant 8 Pump # 1 112.2 hours and 1178.1 A/F 
 Pump # 2 44.2 hours and 464.1 A/F 
 Pump # 3 220.1 hours and 836.38 A/F 
 Pump # 5 226.1 hours and 859.18 A/F 

 

Board Packet 
Page 12 of 101



 
 
 

DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.3 
 

 
TITLE:  District Counsel’s Report – March 2019  
 
SUBJECT: Update on activities since the March 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting  
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Reclamation District 1000’s (RD 1000; District) General Counsel, Jim Day, to provide verbal report 
of work performed during the month of March 2019. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

None  
 
 
STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 
 
 
 

Board Packet 
Page 13 of 101



 
 
 

DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.1 
 

 
TITLE:  Approval of Minutes  
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes from March 8, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
This staff report is intended to serve as the official record of monthly meetings of the Board of 
Trustees. This document details meeting participants, proof of items discussed, summaries of 
board meeting discussion, and vote actions taken by the Board. 
 
Staff recommends Board approval of the March 8, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Ralph M. Brown Act (Gov. Code Section 54950 et seq.) governs meetings by public 
commissions, boards and councils, and public agencies in California. The Act facilitates public 
transparency and public participation in local government decisions. The Act also contains 
specific exemptions from the open meeting requirements where governmental agencies have a 
demonstrated need for confidentiality. 
 
To further comply with transparency, Reclamation District 1000 documents monthly meetings of 
its Board of Trustees through Board Minutes. 
 
Reclamation District 1000 also maintains a historical archive of Board meeting Minutes since 
1912. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff Recommends the Board approve the Minutes from the March 8, 2019 Board of Trustees 
Meeting. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 

Board Packet 
Page 14 of 101



 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. March 8, 2019, Board Meeting Minutes 
 
 
STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/03/2019 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Services Manager 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 
 
 
 

Board Packet 
Page 15 of 101



 

Reclamation District 1000 

Board of Trustees Meeting 
 

1633 Garden Highway 

Sacramento, CA 95833  

 

March 8, 2019 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

The Reclamation District 1000 Board of Trustees met in regular session on this date at the District 

Office. Present were: Board President Jeff Smith; Board Vice President Tom Barandas; Trustee 

Nick Avdis; Trustee Chris Burns; Trustee Fred Harris; General Manager Kevin King; General 

Manager Paul Devereux; District Counsel Jim Day; Administrative Services Manager Joleen 

Gutierrez; District Superintendent Don Caldwell; and Administrative Assistant Christina 

Forehand. 

Also Present:  Scott Brown from Larsen, Wurzel & Associates 

Absent: Trustee David Christophel; Trustee Thom Gilbert   

1. Preliminary 

General Manager, Kevin King, briefly discussed the new Board meeting agenda format 

and explained how agenda items would be presented and action items would be adopted. 

Input by the Board on the new format would be welcome for future meetings.  

 

The meeting was called to order by Board President, Jeff Smith. Trustee Harris moved to 

approve the agenda, seconded by Tom Barandas; all were in favor, the motion was 

approved. After the Pledge of Allegiance, led by GM King, the Board was given the 

opportunity to disclose any potential conflicts of interest for items listed on the agenda. 

There were no conflicts of interest to disclose.  

 

2. Presentations 

There were no presentations scheduled for the March 8, 2019 meeting. 

 

3. Public Comment 

No public comments were made 

 

Agenda Item 5.1 

Attachment No. 1 

Board Packet 
Page 16 of 101



 

4. Informational Items 

In an attempt to familiarize themselves with the new agenda format, the Board briefly 

discussed how to proceed with informational items and potential discussion. Board 

members were encouraged to review the written summaries provided in the board 

packet ahead of time and note any items they wished to discuss further. 

 

4.1 – General Manager’s Report: GM King provided a written summary in the March 

board packet which discussed District activities within the month of February. No 

Trustee comments were made. 

 

4.2 – Superintendent’s Report: A written informational summary was provided to the 

Board in the March board packet, including graphs and data sheets that had been 

previously requested by members of the Board of Trustees. GM King stated that the 

Superintendent’s report is evolving and will include in additional attachments and 

data in future reports regarding local and statewide water conditions. Trustee Avdis 

inquired about levee conditions to which Superintendent Caldwell stated there are no 

significant issues to report. GM King reported that Plant 4 is scheduled to be 

reconstructed as part of the current Army Corps project which will also result in repair 

of a cracked pipe located at Plant 4. Trustee Avdis also inquired about the conditions 

at the Cross Canal due to precipitation levels and potential dam releases; 

Superintendent Caldwell stated there are no problems to report at this time. 

 

4.3 – District Counsel’s Report: District Counsel Jim Day provided a verbal report of his activities 

during February 2019. 

 

5. Consent Calendar 

GM King briefly went over the new format; all items on the consent calendar can be 

adopted as one motion. No discussion is required for each item unless Trustees, staff or 

members of the public request a specific item to be discussed and/or removed from the 

consent calendar.  

 

Trustee Chris Burns requested that Item 5.1 (Approval of the Minutes), be pulled from the 

consent calendar for discussion. Trustee Harris asked to have Item 5.4 (Budget to Actual 

Report), removed from the consent calendar for discussion. Without discussion, Items 5.2 

and 5.3 were moved for approval by Trustee Harris, seconded by Trustee Avdis, by 

unanimous vote, motions carry. 

 

 

 

Board Packet 
Page 17 of 101



5.1 – Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Trustees: ASM Gutierrez accepted proposed 

changes. Trustee Avdis made a motion to approve the February 8, 2019 Board 

Meeting Minutes with changes. Seconded by Trustee Burns, by unanimous vote, 

motion carries. 

 

5.2 – Treasurer’s Report: February 2019 

Checking:  $      74,612.24  

Money Market: $    267,786.59 

County Treasurer:  $ 2,219,130.49 

LAIF:   $ 4,095,527.72 

City Pool A:  $ 2,059,781.64 

A report was included in the March Board packet. 

5.3 – Expenditure Report: February 2019. A report was included in the March Board 

packet.  

5.4 – Budget to Actual Report: There was a brief discussion of the District’s current 

financial status in regard to budgeted line items. ASM Gutierrez informed the board, 

several line items are annual expenses and will not see any further payables booked 

against the line item this fiscal year. Trustee Smith expressed an interest in having a 

possible expenditure chart added to future board packets, using historical expense 

trends of the District, to better visualize and anticipate the District’s financial status 

throughout the fiscal year. GM King stated that future board packets could include a 

written staff report of budgeted line items that may appear as anomalies in the 

Budget to Actual Report. A motion was made by Trustee Harris to approve the Budget 

to Actual Report, seconded by Trustee Barandas, by unanimous vote, motion carries.  

6. Scheduled Items 

GM King provided written summaries and presentation items for discussion and public 

comment. 

 

6.1 – California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Call for Nominations: Trustee Avdis 

made a motion to nominate Trustee Burns for the CSDA Call for Nominations, 

seconded by Trustee Harris, by unanimous vote, motion carries. 

 

6.2 – Authorization to Accept Easement: Resolution No. 2019-3-1 Authorizing General 

Manager to Accept Grant of Easement Deed from Sacramento Area Flood Control 

(SAFCA). Trustee Avdis moved to adopt the Resolution, seconded by Trustee 

Barandas, by unanimous vote, Resolution is adopted.  

 

 

Board Packet 
Page 18 of 101



 

7. Board of Trustees’ Comments 

 

7.1 – Board Activity Updates 

 

7.1.1 – Executive Meeting: Trustee Jeff Smith reported out on the Committee 

meeting. The Committee met on February 27, 2019, in attendance was Trustee 

Tom Barandas, Trustee Jeff Smith and Trustee Fred Harris participated by 

phone. Also in attendance were General Manager Kevin King and 

Administrative Service Manager Joleen Gutierrez. The Committee reviewed 

the new Board Meeting agenda draft as well as items on the proposed agenda. 

Minutes from the Executive Committee meeting were included in the board 

packet. Trustee Burns proposed that the District participate at the Annual 

State of Natomas Luncheon and inquired if it was an item that would need to 

be included on the next board meeting. GM King stated that if there was 

enough interest by the Board staff would proceed with reserving a table for 

the event.  

 

7.1.2 – No additional Committee meetings had taken place since the last Board 

meeting. 

 

8. Closed Session 

 

8.1 – Personnel Evaluation: General Manager 

 

8.2 – Conference with Labor Negotiators: Discussion and direction for negotiations 

between the District and District employees. 

 

9. Reconvene to Open Session 

 

9.1 – Report from Closed Session: No action was taken during Closed Session. 

 

10. Meeting Adjourned 

 

 

 

Board Packet 
Page 19 of 101



DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.2 

TITLE: Treasurer’s Report 

SUBJECT: Approve Treasurer’s Report for March 2019 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to inform the Board of the current total funds in the District’s 
checking and money market accounts, Sacramento County Treasurer Fund, State Treasurer Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), and the City of Sacramento Pooled Investment Fund. 

The Staff Report attachment provides the monthly beginning and ending balances of its 
Operations and Maintenance cash flow. The report considers the current month's receipts, fund 
to fund transfers, accounts payable, and payroll. 

Noteworthy fund and cash flow items in the month of March 2019 - As a direct result of inclement 
weather, March payroll was significantly higher due to 24/7 field crew levee patrols. The District 
also received $157,066.48 into the County Treasury fund during the month of February. This 
information was reflected in the Sacramento County Treasury February statement received in 
March. The amounts received are for FY 19 Sutter County tax assessments. 

Staff recommends the Board approve the Treasurer’s Report for March 2019. 

BACKGROUND: 

Income and Cash 

The District has funds in the California State Controller Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), the 
Sacramento County Treasurer and Bank of the West. 

The District’s primary source of income is property assessments. These assessments are collected 
in the Sacramento and Sutter County tax bills. 

The District is required by law to have a minimum of 6 months operation and maintenance 
reserves. Additionally, the District needs six months of O/M reserves to pay expenses from July 
through December when the 1st installments are collected on property assessments. The annual 
O/M budget is approximately $2 million per year. 

Board Packet 
Page 20 of 101



RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board approve the information in the March 2019 Treasurer’s Report. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Treasurer’s Report

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 04/05/2019 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Services Manager 

____________________________________________ Date: 04/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 21 of 101



Reclamation District 1000

Treasurer's Report

March 2019

Treasurer's Report for March 2019

March 2019

Total Funds 8,412,610.81

Bank of the West - Checking 163,298.53

Bank of the West - Money Market 217,805.95

Sacramento County Treasurer 2,376,196.97

State Treasurer - Local Agency Investment Fund 3,595,527.72

City of Sacramento - Pool A 2,059,781.64

March 2019 - Operations and Maintenance Cash Flow

Beginning Balance 2,450,810.58

Income Expense

Current months receipts 1.86 1.86

Transfer from money market account 550,000.00 550,000.00

Accounts Payable* (298,751.40) (298,751.40)

Payroll (162,565.54) (162,565.54)

Ending Balance 2,539,495.50

*See Attached Check Register

Current months receipts are made up of the following:

Bank of the West Interest 1.86

The district also received $157,066.48 into the County Treasury during February 2019.  Because 

of the timing of receipt of the County Treasury statements, these amounts were not previously

reported.  Amounts are for the FY 19 Sutter County tax assessments.

Agenda Item 5.2 
Attachment No. 1 

Board Packet 
Page 22 of 101



DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.3 

TITLE: Expenditure Report  

SUBJECT: Review and Accept Report for March 2019 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to advise the Board of monthly expenditures and provide an 
explanation of any expenses outside of the usual course of business. 

Staff recommends the Board review and accept the Expenditure Report for March 2019. 

BACKGROUND: 

Expenses 

The Administrative Services Manager reviews and the General Manager approves expenditures. 
This activity is disclosed monthly as an attachment to this staff report.  

A highlight of higher range expenditures for the month of March: 
• DFS Flooring - Budgeted office improvement at $16,709.00
• Customer deposit refund to MCM Construction $8,176.93. The District typically requires

and retains deposits for construction and development projects. Deposits are refunded
at project end.

• Power at Plant 4 $16,572.86 - Pumping excess water due to inclement weather
• Payroll at $68,329.05. Field crew 24/7 levee patrols spiked payroll expenses in March.
• Power at all pants, except Plant 4 - $135,887.65 - Pumping excess water due to inclement

weather
• Consulting services by H.T. Harvey & Associates $7429.53

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and accept the Expenditure Report for March 2019. 

Board Packet 
Page 23 of 101



FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. March 2019 Expenditure Report

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 04/05/2019 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Services Manager 

____________________________________________ Date: 04/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 24 of 101



Type Date Num Name Memo Debit Credit Balance 
Cash and 
Investments 74,613.61 

1010.00 · Bank of the West Checking Acct 74,613.61 
General 
Journal 03/04/2019 3/1/18 payroll 47,176.50 27,437.11 

General 
Journal 03/04/2019 3/1/18 payroll 23,593.18 3,843.93 

General 
Journal 03/04/2019 3/1/18 payroll 97.80 3,746.13 

General 
Journal 03/04/2019 3/1/18 payroll, #10036 403.90 3,342.23 

General 
Journal 03/04/2019 3/1/18 payroll, #10037 415.58 2,926.65 

Transfer 03/05/2019 Funds Transfer 200,000.00 202,926.65 

Check 03/07/2019 40395 
ACWA 
JPIA 1,713.47 201,213.18 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40396

Airgas 
NCN 328.54 200,884.64 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40397 AT&T 275.81 200,608.83 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40398 Brookman Protection Services, Inc. 14,400.00 186,208.83 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40400

DFS 
Flooring 16,709.00 169,499.83 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40401 Employee Relations, Inc. 78.30 169,421.53 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40402 Grace Consulting 1,050.00 168,371.53 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40403 Interstate Oil Company 3,779.82 164,591.71 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40404 Joleen Gutierrez 7.50 164,584.21 

Check 03/07/2019 40405 MCM Construction 8,176.93 156,407.28 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40406

Mead & 
Hunt 2,078.50 154,328.78 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40407 Neat Freak Clean, LLC 280.00 154,048.78 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40408

Paul 
Devereux 180.48 153,868.30 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40409 Smile Business Products 240.47 153,627.83 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40410 Sterling May Equipment Co. Inc. 1,739.37 151,888.46 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40411 Steve Yaeger Consulting 4,562.00 147,326.46 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40412

US Bank 
Corp 3,273.34 144,053.12 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40413 Valley Tire Center, Inc. 19.00 144,034.12 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40414 Water Rite Products, Inc. 88.21 143,945.91 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 40415 West Yost Associates 2,149.68 141,796.23 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/07/2019 EFT PG&E 186.27 141,609.96 

Check 03/08/2019 EFT Cal Pers 8,032.26 133,577.70 

Agenda Item 5.3 
Attachment No. 1 

Board Packet 
Page 25 of 101



Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/08/2019 EFT Napa Auto Parts 285.99 133,291.71 

Check 03/08/2019 EFT Cal Pers 841.48 132,450.23 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/11/2019 EFT Comcast 158.30 132,291.93 

Check 03/11/2019 EFT Intuit Quickbooks 322.54 131,969.39 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/11/2019 EFT Alhambra & Sierra Springs 151.02 131,818.37 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 EFT City of Sacramento 4.38 131,813.99 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 EFT PG&E 16,574.86 115,239.13 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 EFT Waste Management of Sacramento 473.18 114,765.95 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40416 A T.E.E.M. Electrical Engineering, Inc. 500.00 114,265.95 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40417 Berkshire Hathaway Homestate Companies 2,600.72 111,665.23 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40418 Blankinship & Associates, Inc. 3,999.40 107,665.83 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40419 Carson Landscape Industries 695.00 106,970.83 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40420 Chavez, Silva & Company 1,827.50 105,143.33 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40421 Day Carter & Murphy LLP 6,925.00 98,218.33 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40422

Grainger, 
Inc. 365.58 97,852.75 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40423 Great America Financial Services 304.85 97,547.90 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40424 Jim Clifton 1,379.45 96,168.45 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40425 Sacramento County Utilities 227.40 95,941.05 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40426 Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Mgmt 4,311.00 91,630.05 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40427 The Sacramento Bee 391.19 91,238.86 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/14/2019 40428 US HealthWorks 270.00 90,968.86 

Transfer 03/19/2019 Funds Transfer 150,000.00 240,968.86 

Check 03/19/2019 EFT Cal Pers 18,822.89 222,145.97 

Check 03/19/2019 EFT Cal Pers 500.00 221,645.97 

Check 03/19/2019 EFT Cal Pers 7,271.37 214,374.60 

Check 03/19/2019 EFT Cal Pers Payroll ended 2/28/19 2,201.18 212,173.42 

Check 03/19/2019 EFT Cal Pers Payroll ended 2/28/19 1,758.52 210,414.90 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/19/2019 40429 Rocky Mountain Auto Works 205.50 210,209.40 

General 
Journal 03/19/2019 3/15/19 payroll 68,329.05 141,880.35 

General 
Journal 03/19/2019 3/15/19 payroll 22,464.78 119,415.57 

General 
Journal 03/19/2019 3/15/19 payroll 84.75 119,330.82 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/22/2019 40433 Barnett Heating & Air 468.00 118,862.82 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/22/2019 40432

MBK 
Engineers 2,107.50 116,755.32 

Board Packet 
Page 26 of 101



Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/22/2019 40431 Streamline 200.00 116,555.32 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/22/2019 40430 Terrapin Technology Group 895.94 115,659.38 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/25/2019 EFT City of Sacramento 138.81 115,520.57 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/25/2019 EFT City of Sacramento 30.28 115,490.29 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/25/2019 EFT The Home Depot 121.17 115,369.12 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/27/2019 40443 SMUD 135,887.65 -20,518.53

Bill Pmt
-Check 03/27/2019 40442 Sonitrol 2,037.72 -22,556.25

Bill Pmt
-Check 03/27/2019 40434 Aramark 571.11 -23,127.36

Bill Pmt
-Check 03/27/2019 40435 Barnett Heating & Air 526.25 -23,653.61

Bill Pmt
-Check 03/27/2019 40436 County of Sacramento 407.00 -24,060.61

Bill Pmt
-Check 03/27/2019 40437 Green Light Termite and Pest 75.00 -24,135.61

Bill Pmt
-Check 03/27/2019 40438 H.T. Harvey & Associates 7,429.53 -31,565.14

Bill Pmt
-Check 03/27/2019 40439 Larsen Wurzel & Associates 4,342.00 -35,907.14

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/27/2019 40440

Neopost, 
Inc. 47.42 -35,954.56

Bill Pmt
-Check 03/27/2019 40441

Paul 
Devereux 102.56 -36,057.12

Bill Pmt
-Check 03/27/2019 40444 Yolo County Public Works 252.00 -36,309.12

Transfer 03/28/2019 Funds Transfer 200,000.00 163,690.88 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/28/2019 EFT PG&E 1.57 163,689.31 

General 
Journal 03/29/2019 

Bank of 
the West 

March 2019 interest on Bank of the West  
operating account 1.86 163,691.17 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 03/29/2019 EFT Verizon 392.64 163,298.53 

Total 1010.00 · Bank of the West Checking Acct 550,001.86 461,316.94 163,298.53 
Total Cash and 
Investments 550,001.86 461,316.94 163,298.53 

550,001.86 461,316.94 163,298.53 

Board Packet 
Page 27 of 101



DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.4 

TITLE: Budget to Actual Report 

SUBJECT: Review and Accept report for March 2019 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to provide a monthly budgetary snapshot of how well the District is 
meeting its set budget goals for the fiscal year. The monthly Budget to Actual Report contains a 
three-column presentation of actual expenditures, budgeted expenditures, and percentage of 
the budget. Each line item compares budgeted amounts against actual to date expenses. 
Significant budgeted line item variances (if any) will be explained in the Executive Summary of 
this report.  

District Staff has spent time in the past month looking into expenditures for the previous nine 
months and researching current budget overages. It has been determined that the District’s 
accountant has miscoded a handful of expenditures which have led to inaccurate overages in the 
following line items: Government Fees/Permits, SAFCA Assesment/Property Tax, Computer 
Costs, Administrative Services, Admin. Misc Other, Small Office Equipment, and OPEB ARC.  

Staff has worked diligently to correct all errors and make necessary adjustments with the 
accountant. Staff is confident that accounting inaccuracies have been resolved and that the 
March 2019 Budget to Actual Report is a more accurate reflection of the district's spending to 
date.  

Also discovered, the District’s OPEB – ARC payment was erroneously credited toward FY 17/18. 
Because of this, the District’s budgeted $28,000 for the FY 18/19 OPEB ARC payment will not be 
used. Annuitant Health Care now has its own line item on the Budget to Actual Report to reflect 
this expense is different than the OPEB ARC line item; hence, no longer combined. 

Staff recommends the Board review and accept the Budget to Actual Report for March 2019. 

BACKGROUND: 

Budget 

The Board of Trustees adopts a budget annually in June. Staff prepares the Budget which shows 
current year budget versus expenditures and a proposed budget for the next fiscal year.  

Board Packet 
Page 28 of 101



Three committees review the draft budget before being presented to the Board for adoption in 
June. The Personnel Committee reviews the wage and benefits portion of the Budget. The 
Operations Committee reviews the Capital expenditures Budget. After the two committees 
review and make recommendations to the budget, the final draft is prepared for the Finance 
Committee to consider. After review by the Finance Committee, the final Budget is presented to 
the Board for adoption at a regular Board meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and accept the Budget to Actual Report for March 2019. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Budget to Actual Report

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 04/05/2019 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Services Manager 

____________________________________________ Date: 04/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 29 of 101



Reclamation District No. 1000

Budget to Actual Comparison

July 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 (Nine Months Ending of Fiscal 2019)

Year to Date

July 1, 2018 Percent of

to March 31, 2019 Budget Budget

Operation & Maintenance Income

Property Assessments 1,255,519 2,250,000 55.80%

Rents 14,903 20,000 74.52%

Interest Income 77,658 50,000 155.32%

SAFCA - O/M Assessment - 1,400,000 0.00%

Misc Income 8,319 - Not Budgeted

FEMA/OES Disaster Reimbursement 1,041,811 - Not Budgeted

Gain on Capital Asset Disposal 6,400 - Not Budgeted

Total 2,404,610 3,720,000 64.64%

Restricted Fund

Metro Airpark Groundwater Pumping - 22,000 0.00%

Total Combined Income 2,404,610 3,742,000 64.26%

Operations and Maintenance - Expense

Administration

Government Fees/Permits 10,766 12,000 89.72%

Legal 64,525 100,000 64.53%

Liability/Auto Insurance 107,637 110,000 97.85%

Office Supplies 3,852 5,500 70.04%

Computer Costs 13,652 17,000 80.31%

Accounting/Audit 35,574 45,000 79.05%

Admin. Services 10,228 17,000 60.16%

Utilities (Phone/Water/Sewer) 17,937 22,000 81.53%

Mit. Land Expenses 2,592 3,000 86.40%

Administrative Consultants 41,767 52,000 80.32%

Assessment/Property Taxes (SAFCA - CAD) 6,864 6,350 108.09%

Admin - Misc./Other Expenses 3,807 5,000 76.14%

Memberships 31,014 30,000 103.38%

Office Maintenance & Repair 10,730 24,000 44.71%

Payroll Service 1,718 3,000 57.27%

Public Relations 18,237 40,000 45.59%

Small Office & Computer Equipment 4,088 5,000 81.76%

Sub Total 384,988 496,850 77.49%

Personnel/Labor

Wages 724,560 1,000,000 72.46%

Group Insurance (employee health insurance) 76,023 130,000 58.48%

Worker's Compensation Insurance 29,630 40,000 74.08%

OPEB - CERBT ADC - 28,000 0.00%

Annuitant Health Care 54,982 - Not Budgeted

Dental/Vision/Life 16,976 26,000 65.29%

Payroll Taxes 55,677 77,500 71.84%

Pension 138,520 165,000 83.95%

Continuing Education 3,871 15,000 25.81%

Trustee Fees 26,325 39,000 67.50%

Sub Total 1,126,564 1,520,500 74.09%

Agenda Item 5.4 
Attachment No. 1

Board Packet 
Page 30 of 101



Operations

Power 447,304 500,000 89.46%

Supplies/Materials 15,957 22,000 72.53%

Herbicide 79,287 115,000 68.95%

Fuel 34,435 65,000 52.98%

Field Services 44,839 142,000 31.58%

Field Operations Consultants 18,641 20,000 93.21%

Equipment Rental 100 10,000 1.00%

Refuse Collection 8,459 25,000 33.84%

Equipment Repair/Service 999 22,000 4.54%

Equipment Parts/Supplies 27,010 60,000 45.02%

Facility Repairs 54,957 273,000 20.13%

Shop Equipment (not vehicles) 2,989 9,000 33.21%

Field Equipment - 8,000 0.00%

Misc/Other 2 117 - Not Budgeted

FEMA Fees 1,800 - Not Budgeted

Sub Total 736,894 1,271,000 57.98%

Equipment

Equipment 146,908 150,000 97.94%

Sub Total 146,908 150,000 97.94%

Consulting/Contracts/Memberships

Engineering/Technical Consultants 130,565 250,000 52.23%

Security Patrol 41,250 80,000 51.56%

Sub Total 171,815 330,000 52.07%

Total O & M Expenses 2,567,169 3,768,350 68.12%

Capital Expenses

Capital Office Upgrades 21,280 15,000 141.87%

Capital RE Acquisition 5,500 120,000 4.58%

Capital Office Facility Repair 18,571 30,000 61.90%

Document Management 8,807 8,800 100.08%

Capital Facilities 264,815 715,000 37.04%

Sub Total 318,973 888,800 35.89%

Total All Expenditures 2,886,142 4,657,150 61.97%

Board Packet 
Page 31 of 101



DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.5 

TITLE: Ratification of Utility Agreement 

SUBJECT: Review and Consider Adoption of Ratification of Utility Agreement with State of 
California Department of Transportation – Metro Air Parkway 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Reclamation District 1000 (District; RD 1000) has been working with Mead & Hunt and Cal Trans 
Consulting Engineer, Jake Weir (Mark Thomas, Inc.) regarding the proposed Metro Air Parkway 
Improvements.  The proposed project, a new interchange at Metro Air Park and Interstate 5, has been 
in planning for many years, and will require relocation of an RD 1000 drainage channel and 
acceptance of a County waterline encroachment in the RD 1000 channel embankment.  Cal Trans 
requested RD 1000 sign a Utility Agreement (Attachment 1) prior to the April Board meeting, so they 
may finish their construction drawings and go out to bid by April 8, 2019.   

The agreement allows RD 1000 to be reimbursed for design review and construction inspection 
expenditures (approx. $15,000). Mead & Hunt reviewed the proposed plans and has been working 
on RD 1000’s behalf to minimize impacts.  Mead & Hunt recommended RD 1000 accept the 
improvements/relocation as proposed. District Counsel reviewed the proposed Utility 
Agreement and made recommendations for clarification.  Cal Trans responded satisfactorily to those 
requests.  General Manager King signed the Utility Agreement on Friday (3/29). 

Staff requests the Board review and consider ratification of the Utility Agreement as provided in 
Attachment 1 of this staff report. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider ratification of the Utility Agreement as provided in 
Attachment 1 of this staff report. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

District will receive reimbursement of approximately $15,000 for work done to review plans and 
perform inspections. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Utility Agreement – Metro Air Parkway

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 04/08/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 32 of 101



Agenda Item 5.5 
Attachment No. 1

Board Packet 
Page 33 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 34 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 35 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 36 of 101



 
 
 

DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.6 
 

 
TITLE:  Authorization to Accept Easement  
 
SUBJECT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-1 Authorizing General 

Manager to Accept Grant of Easement Deed from Granite Bay – Natomas 
Meadows 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Reclamation District 1000 (District; RD 1000) has been working with the City of Sacramento and 
Granite Bay – Natomas Meadows (Developer) on the Natomas Place Development Project.  Per 
conditions of approval placed on the Project, the Developer and City were required to provide 
legal access to the District’s C1 Canal allowing for ongoing maintenance and operation.   The 
Developer has provided the required access easement as provided in the exhibits to Attachment 
1 of this staff report. 
  
Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-1 
authorizing the General Manager to accept the Grant of Easement Deed as provided in 
Attachment 1 of this staff report. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-1 
authorizing the General Manager to accept the Grant of Easement Deed as provided in 
Attachment 1 of this staff report. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 

None. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2019-4-1: Authorizing the General Manager to Accept Grant of Easement 
Deed from Granite Bay – Natomas Place  

 
STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 37 of 101



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000

RXD1000 RESOLUTION
NO.2019- 4-1 A

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 AUTHORIZING

THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ACCEPT GRANT OF EASEMENT DEED FROM GRANITE

BAY— NATOMAS MEADOWS, LP At

a regular meetingof the Board of Trusteesof Reclamation District No. 1000 held at the District Office

on the 121" day of April 2019, the following resolution was approved and adopted: WHEREAS, 

the Board of Trustees ("Board") of Reclamation District No. 1000 (" District") is

a reclamation district created by act of the legislature of the State of California, approved April
8, 1911; and, WHEREAS, 

the Granite Bay — Natomas Meadows, LP ("Owner") is a limited partnership established
pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington; and, WHEREAS, 

Owner has the need to convey easement deeds to District, to allow District to

maintain access for the District' s purpose and use for existing and future flood control projects; 

and, WHEREAS, 

Owner has provided to District an easement deed as provided in Attachment No. 
1 to this resolution; and, WHEREAS, 

pursuant to Government Code section 27281, the District Board has authority

to accept such assignment of easements from Owner upon the execution of the certificate
ofacceptance set forth in Attachment No. 1 to this resolution; and, WHEREAS, 

the Board desires to authorize the District General Manager to execute the certificate

of acceptance on behalf of the District. NOW

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Board of Trusteesof Reclamation District No. 

1000 hereby accepts the grant of easement deed from Owner as provided in Attachment No. 
1 of this resolution and authorizes the General Manager to execute the certification of acceptance. 

Board Packet 
Page 38 of 101



ON A MOTION BY Trustee Harris, seconded by Trustee Barandas the foregoing resolution

was passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000, this 121h day
of April 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 6 Trustees: Smith, Barandas, Harris, Christophel, Avdis, Burns

NOES: 0 Trustees: 

ABSTAIN: 0 Trustees: 

RECUSE: O Trustees: 

ABSENT: 1 Trustees: Gilbert

Jeff Smith

President, Board of Trustees

Reclamation District No. 1000

Board Packet 
Page 39 of 101



CERTIFICATION: 

I, Joleen Gutierrez, Secretary of Reclamation District No. 1000, hereby certify that the foregoing
Resolution 2019-4- 1 was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000

at the regular meeting held on the 12th of April 2019 and made a part of the minutes thereof. 

A-Jkr- 
JoleenoGieUrrez, District Secretary

Board Packet 
Page 40 of 101



0 w 0 a M M ............ 0 E 0 w 0 0 ...  

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by this deed dated
from the first party to the RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 (" RD 1000"), is hereby
accepted pursuant to RD 1000 Board of Trustees Resolution No. 2019-4- 1, and the Grantee
consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer. 

Dated: , 20

Kevin L. King
General Manager

Board Packet 
Page 41 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 42 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 43 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 44 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 45 of 101



 
 
 

DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.7 
 

 
TITLE:  Authorization to Grant Easement  
 
SUBJECT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-2 Authorizing General 

Manager to Grant Easement Deed Pacific Gas & Electric Company 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Reclamation District 1000 (District; RD 1000) has been working with the Sacramento Area Flood 
Control Agency (SAFCA), the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and the Pacific Gas 
& Electric Company (PG&E) on the reconstruction of the District’s Pumping Plant No. 4.  For the 
project to move forward PG&E needs to relocate their overhead lines and the District needs to 
grant an easement to PG&E for the new location.  PGE is still reviewing the proposed easement 
language from SAFCA, nevertheless staff is asking the Board to review and consider adoption of 
Resolution 2019-4-2 authorizing the General Manager to grant the easement “in substantial 
conformance” as provided in Attachment 1 of this staff report.  
 
Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-2 
authorizing the General Manager to Grant Easement Deed as provided in Attachment 1 of this 
staff report. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-2 
authorizing the General Manager to Grant of Easement Deed, “in substantial conformance” as 
provided in Attachment 1 of this staff report. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 

None. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2019-4-2: Authorizing the General Manager to Grant Easement Deed to 
Pacific Gas & Electric Company  

 
STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 46 of 101



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000

l000 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-4-2

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000

AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO GRANT EASEMENT DEED TO PACIFIC GAS & 

ELECTRIC COMPANY

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 held at the District

Office on the 121" day of April 2019, the following resolution was approved and adopted: 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (" Board") of Reclamation District No. 1000 (" District") 

is a reclamation district created by act of the legislature of the State of California, approved
April 8, 1911; and, 

WHEREAS, the Pacific Gas & Electric Company ( PG& E), a corporation established

pursuant to the laws of the State of California; and, 

WHEREAS, District has the need to convey easement deed to PG& E, to allow PG& E to

relocate PG& E facilities; and, 

WHEREAS, District has provided to PG& E an easement deed as provided in Attachment
No. 1 to this resolution; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the District General Manager to grant the
easement on behalf of the District. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Board of Trustees of Reclamation District

No. 1000 hereby grants easement deed to PG& E as provided in Attachment No. 1 of this
resolution and authorizes the General Manager to grant said easement. 

Board Packet 
Page 47 of 101



ON A MOTION BY Trustee Christophel, seconded by Trustee Burns, the foregoing
resolution was passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000, 

this 12th day of April 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 6 Trustees: Smith, Barandas, Harris, Christophel, Avdis, Burns

NOES: 0 Trustees: 

ABSTAIN: 0 Trustees: 

RECUSE: 0 Trustees: 

ABSENT: 1 Trustees: Gilbert

Jeff Smith

President, Board of Trustees

Reclamation District No. 1000

Board Packet 
Page 48 of 101



CERTIFICATION: 

I, Joleen Gutierrez, Secretary of Reclamation District No. 1000, hereby certify that the foregoing
Resolution 2019-4- 2 was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000

at the regular meeting held on the 12th of April 2019 and made a part of the minutes thereof. 

Joleen errez, District Secretary

Board Packet 
Page 49 of 101



 
Portion of Assessor's Parcel Number 35-130-018 
 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000, a reclamation district created by act of the legislature of 
the State of California, approved April 8, 1911, 
 
hereinafter called Grantor, hereby grants to PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, a 
California corporation, hereinafter called Grantee, a non-exclusive easement that allows Grantee the 
right from time to time to construct, reconstruct, install, inspect, maintain, replace, remove, and use 
electrical distribution facilities of the type hereinafter specified, together with a right of way 
therefor, within the easement area as hereinafter set forth, and also ingress thereto and egress 
therefrom, over and across the lands of Grantor situate in the County of Sutter, State of California. 
 

Said lands of Grantor are described as follows: 
 

1. Lot 137, as said Lot is shown on the “Map of Natomas Bennett Subdivision”, filed for 
record March 25, 1921 in Book 3 of Maps Pages 83 to 87, Sutter County Records; and 
 
2. An adjustment to the northerly line of Lot 137, as said Lot is shown on the “Map of 
Natomas Bennett Subdivision”, filed for record March 25, 1921 in Book 3 of Maps Pages 83 
to 87, Sutter County Records, and Lots 15 and 16, as said Lots are shown on the “Map of 
Natomas Goodland Subdivision”, filed for record November 21, 1919 in Book 3 of Maps 
Pages 29 to 34, Sutter County Records, as said adjustment is described in that document 
recorded January 5, 1990 in Book 1331 at Page 601, Records of said County.  

Grantee's ingress and egress to and from the easement area utilizing said lands shall be limited to 
the area immediately adjacent to Grantee's electrical distribution facilities within said lands and 
existing access ramps and toe of levee patrol roads of the adjacent flood control facilities. 

Said electrical distribution facilities and easement area are described as follows: 

A single line of poles supporting such aerial wires, cables, electrical conductors with associated 
crossarms, braces, transformers, anchors, guy wires and cables, fixtures and appurtenances, as 
Grantee deems necessary for the delivery of electric energy, located within a strip of land thirty 
(30) feet in width, the centerline of which is shown upon Exhibit A and shown as PG&E 

Board Packet 
Page 50 of 101



Easement on Exhibit B, both attached hereto and made a part hereof.  Such anchors, guy wires 
and cables, guy stubs, and fixtures as Grantee deems necessary, extending away from said 
centerline but within said strip of land, installed at such locations as Grantee shall from time to 
time deem necessary. 

 
Grantor further grants to Grantee the right, from time to time, to trim or to cut down any and all 
trees and brush now or hereafter within said Easement Area, and Grantee shall have the further 
right, from time to time, to trim or top trees located on adjacent lands of Grantor along each side of 
said Easement Area which now or hereafter in the opinion of Grantee may interfere with or be a 
hazard to the electrical distribution facilities installed hereunder, or as Grantee deems necessary to 
comply with applicable state or federal regulations related thereto. 
 
Grantor shall not erect or construct any building or other structure or drill or operate any well within 
said Easement Area. This prohibition shall not preclude Grantor, its successors or assigns, from 
constructing and maintaining canals, ditches, embankments, pipelines or other similar drainage and 
irrigation facilities across or adjacent to said Easement Area. 
   
Grantee shall ensure that all facilities installed pursuant to this Easement shall be in compliance 
with the Public Utilities Commission's General Safety Orders and with California Code of 
Regulations Title 23 Waters with regard to clearances to wires installed hereunder. 

The rights granted herein shall be subject to and subordinate to the rights and regulations of the 
United States of America, the State of California, Reclamation District No. 1000 and/or the 
Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency, their successors and assigns, to construct, reconstruct, 
repair, alter, augment, inspect, operate and maintain flood control works within and adjacent to said 
Easement Area.   
 
The legal description herein, or the map attached hereto, defining the location of this utility 
distribution easement, was prepared by Grantee pursuant to Section 8730 (c) of the Business and 
Professions Code.  

The provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and bind the successors and assigns of the 
respective parties hereto. 

Dated:  __________________, _______. 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
  

 
                                  By:_________________________________ 
  
  
  
 By:__________________________________ 
  
  

 
 
 
 
 

Board Packet 
Page 51 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 52 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 53 of 101



 
 
 

DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.8 
 

 
TITLE:  Authorization to Execute Funding Agreement  
 
SUBJECT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-3 Authorizing General 

Manager to Execute Funding Agreement with State of California Department of 
Water Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 

Reclamation District 1000 (District; RD 1000) submitted a grant application to the California 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) under the Flood Maintenance Assistance Program (FMAP) on 
February 22, 2019.  The FMAP program provides State funds for eligible maintenance activities to 
Local Maintaining Agencies, like RD 1000.  The program was started to help ensure that State Plan of 
Flood Control facilities are properly maintained and have sufficient resources, including funding, to 
meet applicable federal regulations and Operation and Maintenance (O&M) manual 
requirements. The District received the funding agreement for award of the grant from DWR on 
March 27, 2019.   
 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-3 authorizing 
the General Manager to Execute Funding Agreement with State of California Department of Water 
Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-3 authorizing 
the General Manager to Execute Funding Agreement with State of California Department of Water 
Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 

Up to $574,000 in grant revenue in Fiscal Year 2019/2020. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2019-4-3: Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Funding Agreement 
with State of California Department of Water Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance 
Program. 
 

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/08/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 54 of 101



r f

j RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000

d

nT1OOO
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-4-3

iW

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000

AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH STATE OF

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES — FLOOD MAINTENANCE ASSISTANCE

Ia:101C11MALTA I

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 held at the District

Office on the 121" day of April 2019, the following resolution was approved and adopted: 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (" Board") of Reclamation District No. 1000 (" District") 

is a reclamation district created by act of the legislature of the State of California, approved
April 8, 1911; and, 

WHEREAS, the District has a progressive history of providing flood protection and
maintaining the District' s levee system; and, 

WHEREAS, the District has identified certain maintenance and equipment needs that

further the goals and objectives of the District; and, 

WHEREAS, the District has applied for California Department of Water Resources

DWR") Flood Maintenance Assistance Program funds under Budget Act of 2018 (Stats. 2018, 

Ch. 29, Item 3860- 001- 0001); and, 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the District General Manager to execute

Funding Agreement Number 2019- FMAP- RD1000-01 (Attachment 1). 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Board of Trustees of Reclamation District

No. 1000 hereby authorize the General Manager to execute Funding Agreement 2019- FMAP- 

RD1000-01 as provided in Attachment No. 1 of this resolution and accept funds pursuant and

subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Safe Drinking Water, water Quality and Supply, 
Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006, and Disaster Preparedness and

Flood Prevention Bond Act of 2006 . 

Board Packet 
Page 55 of 101



ON A MOTION BY Trustee Avd is, seconded by Trustee Baran das, the foregoing resolution

was passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000, this 12tn
day of April 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 6 Trustees: Smith, Barandas, Harris, Christophel, Avdis, Burns

NOES: 0 Trustees: 

ABSTAIN: 0 Trustees: 

RECUSE: 0 Trustees: 

ABSENT: 1 Trustees: Gilbert

Jeff Smith

President, Board of Trustees

Reclamation District No. 1000

Board Packet 
Page 56 of 101



CERTIFICATION: 

I, Joleen Gutierrez, Secretary of Reclamation District No. 1000, hereby certify that the foregoing

Resolution 2019-4- 3 was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000

at the regular meeting held on the 121" of April 2019 and made a part of the minutes thereof. 

Jolee Gierrez, District Secretary

Board Packet 
Page 57 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 58 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 59 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 60 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 61 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 62 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 63 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 64 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 65 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 66 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 67 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 68 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 69 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 70 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 71 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 72 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 73 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 74 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 75 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 76 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 77 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 78 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 79 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 80 of 101



Board Packet 
Page 81 of 101



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 WORKPLAN 
 

TASK 1: PREPARE SWIF - $20K 
Reclamation District No. 1000 (District) will complete its System-Wide Framework (SWIF) document.  RD 
1000 will submit a draft to both Central Valley Flood Protection Board (CVFPB) and the United States 
Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) for review.  Once comments are incorporated the District will submit 
the final SWIF to the CVFPB for submittal to USACE. 

Deliverables: 
• Final SWIF (submitted to USACE and CVFPB for review) 

TASK 2: TECHNICAL/ENGINEERING REPORT 
The District doesn’t plan on doing a 218 election at this time. 

TASK 3: ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES 
$12,400. Administrative activities will not exceed 5% of the total cost of the O&M activities. 

TASK 4: O&M ACTIVITIES 
Vegetation Management: $186,500.  The District will begin the high-hazard tree removal process. 
The District plans to manage vegetation through removal or trimming between Discovery Park 
and Northgate and in the San Cove area upstream of Powerline Road.  A biological study and 
mitigation may be required.  

Encroachment Enforcement: $50,000. To come into compliance with state and federal 
requirements, non-compliant waterside encroachments will need to be inspected and removed 
or abandoned in place.  
 
Deliverables: 

• Bid Package(s) or Award of Contract 
• Studies as applicable 
• Completion Report(s) 

TASK 5: EQUIPMENT/MATERIAL PURCHASES 
Equipment. $305,100. Purchase of a tractor to replace the existing one that does not 
meet air quality requirements. The tractor is used for vegetation control on the levee. 

2 - Pull Tractor JD 5090M for $62,000/mower 
1 – Tiger Boom Mower, John Deere, 5115M, $181,100/mower 

 
Deliverables: 

• Equipment Invoices 

Board Packet 
Page 82 of 101



ID Task 
Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

1
2 Task 1: Prepare SWIF 152 days Mon 6/3/19 Tue 12/31/19

3 Task 3: 
Administrative 
Activities

152 days Mon 6/3/19 Tue 12/31/19

4 Task 4: O&M 
Activities

152 days Mon 6/3/19 Tue 12/31/19

5 Task 5: Equipment 
Purchases

60 edays Mon 6/3/19 Fri 8/2/19

6 Reclamation District 
No. 1000 FMAP

6/2 6/9 6/16 6/23 6/30 7/7 7/14 7/2
June July

Page 1
Board Packet 

Page 83 of 101



7/21 7/28 8/4 8/11 8/18 8/25 9/1 9/8 9/15 9/22 9/29 10/6 10/13 10/20 10/27 11/3 11/10 11/17 11/24 12/1 12/8 12/15 12/22 12/29
August September October November December Janu

Page 2
Board Packet 

Page 84 of 101



12/29 1/5 1/12 1/19 1/26 2/2 2/9 2/16 2/23 3/1 3/8 3/15 3/22 3/29 4/5 4/12 4/19 4/26 5/3 5/10 5/17 5/24 5/31 6/7
January February March April May June

Page 3
Board Packet 

Page 85 of 101



DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.1 

TITLE: Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget Adjustment 

SUBJECT: Review and Consider Approval of Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget Adjustment and 
Amend District’s Official Pay Rate Schedule 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 1000 (RD 1000; District) adopted the District’s Fiscal 
Year 2018/2019 Budget on July 13, 2018.  The adopted budget did not contemplate certain 
temporary labor expenses, which the District needs based on current and projected work 
demands.  Staff is recommending the Board review and consider approval of an adjustment to 
the Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget in the amount of $27,388 and amend the District’s Official Pay 
Rate Schedule, as provided in Attachment 1 of this staff report.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board approve an adjustment to the Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget in the 
amount of $27,388 and amend the District’s Official Pay Rate Schedule, as provided in 
Attachment 1 of this staff report. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The District will incur additional, temporary labor expense of $27,388 in Fiscal Year 2018/2019. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Reclamation District 1000 – Official Pay Rate Schedule (4/12/2019)

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 04/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 86 of 101



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 

OFFICAL PAY RATE SCHEDULE 

2018-19 

(amended 4/12/2019) 

Position Minimum Maximum 

General Manager $11,021/Mo. $15,216/Mo. 

Project Manager/Engineer 
(Temporary) $9,919/Mo. $13,694/Mo. 

Superintendent $6,968/Mo. $9,621/Mo. 

Administrative Services Manager $5,902/Mo. $8,149/Mo. 

Foreman $30.73/Hr. $42.43/Hr. 

Equipment Maintenance Specialist $24.92/Hr. $34.40/Hr. 

Flood Operations Specialist II $24.92/Hr. $34.40/Hr. 

Flood Operations Specialist I $20.71/Hr. $28.59/Hr. 

Administrative Assistant $17.54/Hr. $24.21/Hr. 

Agenda Item 6.1 
Attachment No. 1

Board Packet 
Page 87 of 101



DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.2 

TITLE: Authorization for Exception 

SUBJECT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-4 Authorizing 180 Day-
Wait Period Exception for Appointment of Retired Annuitant – Paul Devereux 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 1000 (RD 1000; District) have expressed an interest 
in retaining retiring General Manager, Paul Devereux, as a retired annuitant upon his retirement 
on May 3, 2019.  Mr. Devereux would begin as a retired annuitant on May 16, 2019 in the position 
of Project Manager/Engineer.  Typically, pursuant to the rules of the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (CalPERS) for retired annuitants, a mandatory 180 Day-Wait period is 
required prior to returning to work as a retired annuitant.  However, there is an exception to the 
wait period which is applicable given the nature of the proposed appointment.  For the exception 
to apply, the District must certify the nature of the employment and that the appointment is 
necessary to fill a critically needed position sooner than 180 days.  As such, staff is recommending 
the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-4, authorizing 180 day-wait 
period exception for appointment of retired annuitant – Paul Devereux. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-4, 
authorizing 180 day-wait period exception for appointment of retired annuitant – Paul Devereux. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The District will incur additional labor expense in Fiscal Year 2018/2019 not to exceed $27,388. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. RD 1000 Resolution No. 2019-4-4

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 04/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 88 of 101



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000

1000
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-4-4

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000

AUTHORIZING 180- DAY WAIT PERIOD EXCEPTION FOR APPOINTMEMNT OF RETIRED

ANNUITANT PAUL DEVEREUX

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 7522. 56 & 21224

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 held at the District

Office on the 121h day of April 2019, the following resolution was approved and adopted: 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (" Board") of Reclamation District No. 1000 (" District") 

recognize the importance of cohesive ganizational transition to ensure the District' s ongoing
mission to provide flood protection for the Natomas Basin; and, 

WHEREAS, in compliance with Government Code section 7522. 56 the Board must

provide CalPERS this certification resolution when hiring a retiree before 180 days has
passed since his or her retirement date; and, 

WHEREAS, Paul Devereux ( Mr. Devereux), CalPERS ID 611-801- 1945 retires from the

District in the position of General Manager/ District Engineer, effective May 3, 2019; and, 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 7522. 56 requires that post -retirement

employment commence no earlierthan 180days afterthe retirement date, which is October

31, 2019 without this certification resolution; and, 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 7522. 56 provides that this exception to the

180- day wait period shall not apply if the retiree accepts any retirement -related incentive; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Board, the District, and Mr. Devereux certify that Mr. Devereux has
not and will not receive a Golden Handshake or any other retirement -related incentive; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board hereby appoints Mr. Devereux as an extra help retired annuitant
to perform the duties of Project Manager/ Engineer for the District under Government Code

section 21224, effective May 16, 2019; and, 

WHEREAS, the entire employment agreement, contract or appointment document

between Mr. Devereux and the District has been reviewed by the Board and is attached
hereto; and, 

Board Packet 
Page 89 of 101



WHEREAS, no matters, issues, terms or conditions related to this employment and

appointment have been or will be placed on a consent calendar; and, 

WHEREAS, the employment shall be limited to 960 hours perfiscal year; and, 

WHEREAS, the compensation paid to retirees cannot be less than the minimum nor

exceed the maximum monthly base salary paid to other employees performing comparable
duties, divided by 173. 333 to equal the hourly rate; and, 

WHEREAS, the maximum base salary for this position is $ 13, 694 and the hourly
equivalent is $ 79. 00 and the minimum base salary for this position is $ 9, 919 and the hourly
equivalent is $ 57. 23; and, 

WHEREAS, the hourly rate paid to Mr. Devereux will be $ 79. 00; and, 

WHEREAS, Mr. Devereux has not and will not receive any other benefit, incentive, 

compensation in lieu of benefit or other form of compensation in addition to this hourly
pay rate. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Board of Trustees of Reclamation

District No. 1000 hereby certifies the nature of the employment of Paul Devereux as
described herein and detailed in the employment agreement/ contract/ appointment

document attached hereto as Exhibit A and that this appointment is necessary to fill the

critically needed position of Project Manager/ Engineerfor Reclamation District No. 1000 by
May 16, 2019 because Mr. Devereux has the necessary specialized skills, qualifications, 
experience and abilities to assist Reclamation District No. 1000 with elimination of a

backlog, special project work and performing work in excess of what regular staff can do. 

Board Packet 
Page 90 of 101



ON A MOTION BY Trustee Harris, seconded by Trustee Baran das, the foregoing resolution

was passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000, this 12tn

day of April 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 5 Trustees: Smith, Barandas, Harris, Christophel, Avdis

NOES: 1 Trustees: Burns

ABSTAIN: Trustees: 

RECUSE: Trustees: 

ABSENT: 1 Trustees: Gilbert

Jeff Smith

President, Board of Trustees

Reclamation District No. 1000

Board Packet 
Page 91 of 101



CERTIFICATION: 

I, Joleen Gutierrez, Secretary of Reclamation District No. 1000, hereby certify that the foregoing

Resolution 2019- 4-4 was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000

at the regular meeting held on the 12th day of April 2019, and made a part of the minutes thereof. 

Z LL
Jole utierrez, District Secretary

Board Packet 
Page 92 of 101



May 16, 2019 

Mr. Paul Devereux 
Street Address 
City, CA Zip Code 

Subject: Temporary Employment with Reclamation District No. 1000 

Dear Paul, 

This Offer Letter will confirm the terms of your temporary appointment as Project Manager/Engineer with 
Reclamation District 1000.  This position shall be part time (approximately 10-20 hours per week) and shall 
commence on May 16, 2019 for approximately six (6) months.  CalPERS retirement statutes and 
regulations prohibit you from working more than a combined 960 hours during any fiscal year (July 1 to 
June 30) for any CalPERS member employer, including but not limited to the District. 

Under the administrative direction of the General Manager, the scope of your services as Project 
Manager/Engineer will be:   

1. To plan, assign, direct and review Engineering activities including planning, design and
construction of capital projects; review and approve infrastructure for new developments;
provide technical expertise and direction; develop policy, procedures and objectives; plan,
review and monitor budgets.

2. Responsibility for planning, coordinating and performing project specific civil engineering
work related to the planning, design, construction and maintenance of the District’s
infrastructure.  Direct the preparation of plans and specifications for system improvements;
direct survey crews; oversee in the preparation of maps, plans and layouts; review
improvement plans for proposed facilities.

3. Prepare legal agreements for projects which may include: Right of Entry, Protection of
Facilities, Risk Transfer, Grant of Easement, Grant Deed and Quitclaim Deed.  Coordinate
District projects with contractors and outside agencies.

4. Review proposed developments for compliance with District policies and propose District
development requirements and policies.

Exhibit A

Board Packet 
Page 93 of 101



5. Direct and perform the preparation of contracts, requests for proposals and specifications.  
Prepare schedules and coordinate the work of consultants and act as resource person for 
them; review related legislation and ensure that the District complies. 
 

6. Enforce District approved requirements through contact with developers, contractors, 
agencies, utilities and the general public. 
 

7. Inspect new construction, reconstruction and repairs for conformance to District standards 
and construction documents; coordinate the approval of minor variations from contract 
documents and District standards. 

 
Your compensation will be based on a monthly salary of $13,694, divided by 173.33 as required by CalPERS 
for an hourly wage rate of $79.00.   Your position is classified as “exempt” from overtime under the state 
and federal wage and hour regulations.  As a Retired Annuitant you will not be eligible for any other 
benefits or other form of compensation from the District, including but not limited to sick leave, vacation 
benefits, health insurance, or retirement benefits.   
 
Your employment with the District is “at will”.  While your employment is not for an indefinite term, 
consistent with your “at will” status either you or the District may terminate the employment relationship 
at any time, with or without cause or advance notice.  You will also be expected to comply with the policies 
contained in the District’s Employee Handbook.  In the event of any conflict between the Employee 
Handbook and this letter, the terms of this letter shall govern. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  If the terms of this Offer Letter are acceptable to you, 
please sign below and return a copy to me.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Reclamation District 1000 

 

 

Kevin L. King 
General Manager 
 
 

I accept employment with the District as a Retired Annuitant under the terms of this Offer Letter.  I certify 
that I did not receive any unemployment insurance payments within the 12 months prior to this 
appointment for previous retired annuitant work with any CalPERS employer. 

 
 

________________________________    Date: ___________________________ 

Paul Devereux 

Board Packet 
Page 94 of 101



DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.3 

TITLE: Recognition of Service 

SUBJECT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-5 Recognizing District 
Service – Paul Devereux 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 1000 (RD 1000; District) wishes to recognize 
General Manager, Paul Devereux, upon his retirement, for his service over the course of the last 
13 years.  Mr. Devereux has been instrumental in making sure the residents of the Natomas Basin 
have been safe from potential floods and has dutifully served the community through his efforts. 
Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-5, 
Recognizing District Service – Paul Devereux. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-4-5, 
Recognizing District Service – Paul Devereux. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. RD 1000 Resolution No. 2019-4-5

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 04/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 95 of 101



RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING PAUL DEVEREUX 
ON THE OCCASION OF HIS RETIREMENT 

PAUL DEVEREUX is retiring in May of 2019 after 13 years as General Manager of Reclamation 
District 1000. During these 13 years he has been instrumental in making sure the residents of the 
Natomas Basin have been safe from potential floods.   

However, flood issues are not foreign to Paul having started as a teenager back in St. Louis, Missouri 
where he experienced the 1973 historic Mississippi flood and catastrophic levee failures.  Seeing the 
nature of floods inspired Paul to obtain a civil engineering degree at the University of Notre Dame to 
learn and be prepared to make a change.   

With degree in hand, he decided to go West to Southern California where his career started working 
in flood control.  While in Southern California, he met and married the love of his life, Liza.  Paul and 
Liza then moved to the Bay Area, so Liza could be closer to family.  Paul and Liza have three daughters 
and one son, as well as one grandchild to spoil. 

Then in 1991 Paul and Liza moved to the Sacramento area where Paul served as the Director of 
Engineering at the Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency on regional flood control issues.  Staying 
with the flood control expertise, Paul subsequently served as General Manager of the American River 
Flood Control District. 

In 2006, Paul joined Reclamation District No. 1000 as General Manager overseeing the levee system 
consisting of 42.61 miles of project levees encircling the District which is located in Sacramento and 
Sutter counties and is approximately 55,000 acres in size. As General Manager, Paul is ultimately 
responsible for providing residents of the Natomas Basin with flood protection.  Paul ensures the 
levees are inspected, maintained and repaired by Reclamation District No. 1000 on a regular basis 
throughout the year and patrolled continuously during periods of high water to safeguard against 
failure. With a relatively small staff, the Reclamation District No. 1000 operates and maintains a 
drainage system consisting of 30 miles of main drainage canals, about 150-miles of drainage ditches 
and seven main pumping stations. The drainage system collects storm water and drainage and 
delivers them to the pumping plants for disposal in the Sacramento River. 

In his 12 years as General Manager, Paul has seen significant change in the Natomas Basin where there 
has been a shift from rural to more urban setting with challenges and issues that follow.  Paul has been 
instrumental in providing outreach to residents of the Natomas Basin to help them understand what 
Reclamation District No.  1000 does for the community, he has initiated a capital improvement 
program to help look to the future and overseen the construction of new levees and pump stations. 
These are just a few highlights of the many tasks that Paul embraces with professionalism and a 
commitment to the residents of Natomas. 

Paul’s motto is “We hope for the best but prepare for the worst;” the Natomas community has been 
well protected under Paul’s leadership.  

The Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000, hereby congratulates PAUL DEVEREUX on his 
retirement and wishes him many fulfilling and happy years of relaxation to come.   

______________________ _______________________ 
Jeff Smith, President Tom Barandas, Vice President 

______________________ _______________________ 
Nick Avdis, Trustee David Christophel, Trustee 

______________________ ______________________ 
Chris Burns, Trustee Thom Gilbert, Trustee  

______________________ 
Fred Harris, Trustee 

Agenda Item 6.3 
Attachment No. 1

Board Packet 
Page 96 of 101



 
 
 

DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1.1 
 

 
TITLE:  Committee Meeting Minutes 
 
SUBJECT: Meeting Minutes from Committee Meetings Since the March Board Meeting 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
Executive Committee Meeting – April 3, 2019  
 
A meeting of the Reclamation District 1000 Executive Committee was held on Wednesday, April 
3, 2019 at 8:00 a.m. at the District office.  In attendance were Trustees Barandas, Smith and Harris 
(phone participant).  Staff in attendance were General Manager(s) King and Devereux and 
Administrative Services Manager Gutierrez.  No members of the public were present and 
therefore no public comments were made. 
 
General Manager King presented the proposed agenda for the April 12, 2019 Board of Trustees 
meeting.  The Executive Committee approved the April 12, 2019 Board Agenda and with no 
further business on the Executive Committee Agenda, the meeting was adjourned at 8:45 a.m.   
 
Personnel Committee Meeting – April 3, 2019  
 
A meeting of the Reclamation District 1000 Personnel Committee was held on Thursday, April 4, 
2019 at 3:30 p.m. at the District office.  In attendance were Trustees Harris, Burns and 
Christophel.  Staff in attendance were General Manager King and Administrative Services 
Manager Gutierrez.  No members of the public were present and therefore no public comments 
were made. 
 
General Manager King presented the proposed personnel budget for Fiscal Year 2019/2020.  The 
first item for discussion centered on conceptual cost of living adjustments and merit/salary step 
adjustments anticipated in 2019/2020.  The Personnel Committee agreed to move forward with 
the amounts shown in the proposal for the purpose of building the entire Fiscal Year 2019/2020 
Budget. The Committee also discussed merit/salary step administration and the District’s 
compensation philosophy, no changes were recommended from the Committee and the item 
was left up to the General Manager to make recommendations to be discussed at a future 
meeting, if necessary.  The last item discussed by the committee was in regard to hiring Paul 
Devereux as a retired annuitant in a temporary employee classification and the process necessary 
to do so.  A majority of the committee agreed to the process and recommendation from the 
General Manager.  The item will be discussed at the April Board Meeting.  With no further 
business on the Personnel Committee Agenda, the meeting was adjourned at 5:15 p.m.   

Board Packet 
Page 97 of 101



Urbanization Committee Meeting – April 9, 2019  
 
A meeting of the Reclamation District 1000 Urbanization Committee was held on Tuesday, April 
9, 2019 at 8:00 a.m. at the District office.  The meeting occurred after this report was published. 
Minutes from the meeting will be provided into the record at the April 12, 2019 Regular Board 
meeting.   
 
Operations Committee Meeting – April 9, 2019  
 
A meeting of the Reclamation District 1000 Operations Committee was held on Tuesday, April 9, 
2019 at 9:00 a.m. at the District office.  The meeting occurred after this report was published. 
Minutes from the meeting will be provided into the record at the April 12, 2019 Regular Board 
meeting.   
 
  
STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/08/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 
 

Board Packet 
Page 98 of 101



 
 
 

DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1.1 
 

 

TITLE:  Operations Committee Meeting Minutes 
 
SUBJECT: Meeting Minutes from the Operations Committee Meeting April 9, 2019 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 

Operations Committee Meeting – April 9, 2019  
 
A meeting of the Reclamation District 1000 Operations Committee was held on Tuesday, April 9, 
2019, at 9:00 a.m. at the District office.  In attendance were Trustees Barandas, Christophel and 
Smith. Staff in attendance were General Manager King, Superintendent Caldwell, and 
Administrative Services Manager Gutierrez. No members of the public were present, and 
therefore no public comments were made. 
 
The Committee met to discuss the District’s Operations and Maintenance Budget assumptions 
for FY 2019/2020. General Manager King led the discussion about typical budgeting line item 
decreases, inflationary increases and upcoming expenses that will be covered under a grant that 
the District was recently awarded.  
 
Committee member Smith suggested the District develop maintenance plans to assist in 
budgeting for recurring maintenance expenses. He also indicated the District should research 
costs associated with maintenance vs. replacement (of large equipment), as this could potentially 
lead to an increase in optimization and operating efficiency. Superintendent Caldwell shared the 
knowledge he has received from other agencies that in some cases, equipment replacement can 
be equally costly because repairs for high-efficiency equipment is more specialized and technical 
in nature. The Committee consensus is - District consultants and staff should thoroughly study 
this topic. Next, the Committee reviewed the remainder of proposed O/M expenses and had a 
brief discussion of the District’s Capital Improvement Plan. 
 
There was no update to report on the V Drain and nothing substantial to relay on the Plant 1B 
Spare Transformer; except, the study is still ongoing. The meeting adjourned. 
  
STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/11/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 
 

Board Packet 
Page 99 of 101



 
 
 

DATE:  April 12, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1.1 
 

 

TITLE:  Urbanization Committee and Special Board Meeting Minutes 
 
SUBJECT: Meeting Minutes from the Urbanization Committee/Special Board Meeting 

April 9, 2019 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
 

Urbanization Committee Meeting and Special Board Meeting – April 9, 2019  
 
A meeting of the Reclamation District 1000 Urbanization Committee/Special Board Meeting was 
held on Tuesday, April 9, 2019 at 8:02 a.m. at the District office.  In attendance were Trustees 
Avdis, Burns, Gilbert and Trustee Barandas sat in on the meeting thereby creating a Special Board 
Meeting. Staff in attendance were General Manager King and Administrative Services Manager 
Gutierrez. No members of the public were present and therefore no public comments were 
made. 
 
The Committee met to discuss the District’s FY 2019/2020 Outreach Plan. They reviewed the 
District’s 2018 Public Relations Plan, reviewed goals, and determined that routine public 
information work such as social media, website, outreach to neighborhood/community 
associations, drafting newsletters could be absorbed by in-house staff. Media spokesperson 
needs will be addressed by GM King with direction from the Board. In the event strategic public 
relations needs arise, the District will solicit RFPs from professional public relations consulting 
firms to identify PR opportunities, perform outreach to elected officials/government 
departments and develop public relations strategy and or campaigns.  
 
The committee also discussed public outreach standards and expectations. It was determined 
the District currently does not have a drafted policy or guidelines. Trustee Avdis requested the 
development of comprehensive guidelines for the District’s social media platform. 
 
The Committee ended the meeting with a conversation about urban encampments/homeless 
impacts throughout the District and how best to deal with increased staff time, resources 
directed toward these efforts. Also addressed were perceived threats to levee integrity.  Trustee 
Avdis suggested review of the District’s Mission Statement “RD 1000’s mission is flood protection 
for the Natomas Basin and providing for the public’s health and safety by operating and 
maintaining the levees, and the District’s canals and pump stations in a safe, efficient and 
responsible manner.” Trustee Avdis further suggested the District continue tracking staff 
time/related costs associated with encampment activities (i.e., cleanups, levee damage, in-kind 

Board Packet 
Page 100 of 101



contributions) that deter crews from focusing their time and resources towards the District’s 
mission.   
 
  
STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 04/10/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 
 

Board Packet 
Page 101 of 101


	BOT Agenda April 2019
	4.1
	4.2
	4.2 Superintendents Report.pdf
	4.2 Attachment 1 Superintendent Report.pdf

	4.3
	5.1
	5.1 Minutes_Board Meeting March 2019_ Staff Report.pdf
	5.1 Attachment 1 Approval of the Minutes 3-8-19 (cf) (jg).pdf

	5.2
	5.2 Treasurer's Report March 2019_Staff Report.pdf
	Treasurer's Report Fiscal 2019.pdf

	5.3
	5.3 Expenditure Report March 2019_Staff Report.pdf
	5.3 Attachment 1 Expenditure Report.pdf

	5.4
	5.4 Budget to Actual Report March 2019_Staff Report.pdf
	Copy of Fiscal 2019 Budget To Actual Comparison (005).pdf

	5.5
	5.5 Ratification of Agreement.pdf
	5.5 Attachment 1 UA-Metro-RD-1000 Executed.pdf

	5.6
	5.6 Acceptance of Easement_04122019.pdf
	5.6 Resoultion 2019_04_01.pdf
	5.6 Certificate of Acceptance.pdf
	CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE
	CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

	5.6 Attachment 1 Acceptance of Easement.pdf

	5.7
	5.7 Grant of Easement_04122019.pdf
	5.7 Resoultion 2019_04_02.pdf
	5.7 Attachment 1 Grant of Easement.pdf
	5.7 Exhibit A and B.pdf

	5.8
	5.8 FMAP Funding Agreement.pdf
	5.8 Resoultion 2019_04_03.pdf
	5.8 Reso Attachment 1.pdf
	FMAP Workplan.pdf
	Reclamation District No. 1000 Workplan
	Reclamation District No. 1000 Workplan
	Task 1: Prepare SWIF - $20K
	Task 1: Prepare SWIF - $20K
	Task 2: Technical/Engineering Report
	Task 2: Technical/Engineering Report
	Task 3: Administrative Activities
	Task 3: Administrative Activities
	Task 4: O&M Activities
	Task 4: O&M Activities
	Task 5: Equipment/Material Purchases
	Task 5: Equipment/Material Purchases

	FMAP schedule.pdf

	6.1
	6.1 Budget Adjustment & Salary Table_04122019.pdf
	6.1 Attachment 1 Official RD 1000 Pay Rate Schedule 2018-19_04122019.pdf

	6.2
	6.2 Authorization for Exception_04122019.pdf
	6.2 Resoultion 2019-4-4.pdf
	6.2 Resolution 2019-4-4 Exhibit A Offer Letter.pdf

	6.3
	6.3 Recognition of Service.pdf
	6.3 Resolution 2019-4-5.pdf

	7.1.1



